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Lake Superior, Severn and Albany Districts after 1821 

Introduction 

During the 1810s, the decline in fur-bearing animals in the 

Nipigon region became more accelerated. The coalition of 

1821 ended the overhunting of the region, and the number of 

posts was reduced. Lake Superior district was created after 

the coalition and placed in the Southern Department. The 

posts in this new district were formerly in the southern 

part of Moose district and North West Company's Pic, Fort 

William and Michipicoton departments. From the middle of 

the 1820s, the Lake Superior district's establishments, 

especially those on Lake Superior, were subjected to 

increasing competition from traders and settlers. In the 

1840s, mining speculation began on both sides of the lake. 

Minerals were found on the American side and mines were 

opened which in the 1850s attracted many Americans. 

Despite the fact that Severn district had only two 

posts, Severn and Trout Lake, after 1821, its decline 

continued. Simpson abandoned it between 1828 and 1832 to 

permit it to regenerate. Only one post, Severn, was 

maintained in the district in the 1830s and Trout Lake was 

added in 1844. Albany district, on the other hand, began to 

recover immediately after the coalition, and its improvement 

continued unabated throughout George Simpson's three decades 

as governor. Simpson founded beaver preserves in the 

district and adopted other necessary conservation measures. 

Lake Seul was the most wersterly post in the district's 

interior, and Martin Fall the most easterly. Lake Seul was 

subjected to competition in the 1840s and afterward from 
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traders in the Rainy Lake and Red River regions. The other 

posts were secure; the lack of country provisions in the 

heart of the district discouraged traders from penetrating 

inland from Lake Superior and Lake Huron districts. 

Lake Superior District 

The Hudson's Bay Company's inventory of posts in 1821 lists 

the following establishments in the North West Company's 

Nipigon Department: Lake Nipigon, Sturgeon Lake, Lake Seul, 

Escabitchewan, Red Lake, Lesser Sturgeon Lake and Abimonde 

[or Atimonde] Lake. Pic Department included Pic, Long 

Lake and Black River, and Michipicoton Department, 

Michipicoten, Mattagami, New Brunswick, Batchewana Bay, 

Petoubeau (?) and Sault Ste. Marie Depot. For Fort 

William Department, the posts listed were Fort William Depot 

and Mille Lacs;4 for Lac la Pluie, Vermilion Lake, War 

Road and Whitefish Lake. The establishments occupied by 

the Hudson's Bay Company in 1820-21 in Albany District, 

which included the region between Berens River district and 

Moose and Kinoogumisee districts, were Albany and its 

outpost at Capusco, Henley, Martin Fall and its outpost at 

Attawapiskat Lake, Osnaburgh and its outposts at Moose Lake 

and Crow Nest Lake, and Red Lake." Berens River district 

included Berens River and its outposts at Jack Head, Middle 

Olimpic and Sandy Point Lake.' Severn district was composed 
Q 

of Severn and its outposts at Trout Lake and Waynuskee. 

Lac la Pluie district had only one establishment, Lac la 

Pluie.9 

Lake Superior district was created after the coalition 

of 1821 and was placed in the Southern Department. The posts 

comprising this new district were formely in the southern 

part of Moose district, and in the North West Company's Pic, 

Fort William and Michipicoten departments. Lake Nipigon was 


